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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

HOUSTON DIVISION
CIRCUIT VENTURES LLC, §
§
Plaintiff, § Case No: 4:19-cv-1515
§
vs. §
§
PEPPRL + FUCHS, INC., § JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
§
Defendant. §
§

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff Circuit Ventures LLC (“Plaintiff” or “CV”), by and through its attorneys, files
this First Amended Complaint against Pepprl + Fuchs, Inc. (“Defendant” or “PFI”) for
infringement of United States Patent Nos. 7,834,744 (“the ‘744 Patent”); 8,816,869 (“the ‘869
Patent”); and 8,912,893 (“the ‘893 Patent™).

PARTIES AND JURISDICTION

1. This is an action for patent infringement under Title 35 of the United States Code.
Plaintiff is seeking injunctive relief as well as damages.

2. Jurisdiction is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 (Federal
Question) and 1338(a) (Patents) because this is a civil action for patent infringement arising
under the United States patent statutes.

3. Plaintiff is a Delaware LLC, with an office address of 825 Watters Creek Blvd.,
Building M, Suite 250, Allen, TX 75013.

4. Upon information and belief, Defendant is an Ohio corporation with a principal

address of 1600 Enterprise Pkwy, Twinsburg, OH 44087-2245. On information and belief,
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Defendant may be served with process through its agent, CT Corp., at 1601 Elm Street, Dallas,
TX 75201. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant has
committed, and continues to commit, acts of infringement in this District, has conducted business
in this District, and/or has engaged in continuous and systematic activities in this District.

5. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s instrumentalities that are alleged herein
to infringe were and continue to be used, imported, offered for sale, and/or sold in this District.

VENUE

6. On information and belief, venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §

1400(b) because acts of infringement are occurring in this District and Defendant has a regular

and established place of business in this District located at 502 Cane Island Pkwy. Katy, TX

77493.
COUNT I
(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 7,834,744)
7. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 6 herein by reference.
8. This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in

particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.

0. Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘744 Patent with sole rights to enforce
the ‘744 Patent and sue infringers.

10. A copy of the ‘744 Patent, titled “Circuit Monitoring Device,” is attached hereto
as Exhibit A.

11. The 744 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance with
Title 35 of the United States Code.

12. The claims of the ‘744 Patent recite a flexible system that can reproduce the

function of a typical security management system. ‘744 Patent, 3:26-28. Typical systems are
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proprietary and components from one system will not work with components from another
system. Additionally, any modifications to the hardware or software of a typical system usually
must be done by the original manufacturer. Id., 1:31-39. Further, each manufacturer of typical
security management system equipment specifies a particular value of field resistance for the last
field device in a line of devices. Id., 2:18-20. The problems with typical systems are especially
apparent when an owner needs to upgrade or modify their system. /d., 2:39-50.
Because each line connected to the system includes a field resistor of a particular
value, the owner is forced to return to the original supplier of the SMS in order to
provide an upgrade. Alternatively, the system owner must rewire each of the lines
connected to the system and replace the field resistor with a different value, as
specified by the supplier of the new SMS control unit. Where the resistor is built
into the field device it cannot be changed and the system owner is forced to also
replace each of the devices if it wants to change to a different brand of SMS
control unit.
Id., 2:40-50. And, typical systems include an operator interface which is proprietary and cannot
be changed by the user. Id., 2:51-57. The system claimed in the ‘744 Patent allows for the
retrofit of existing security management systems while using the existing circuity wiring of the
typical legacy system. Id., 21-28.

13. Claim 1, for example, recites:

An apparatus for monitoring a circuit and for coupling to a central system
comprising:

a circuit module to determine the status of the circuit;

a network communications module coupled to the circuit module to
communicate a signal indicative of the assigned status to the central system via a
network, said network communications module limiting all status
communications with the central system to only the signal indicative of the
assigned status; and

a display to present an indication of a status of the circuit based on the
signal indicative of the assigned status, wherein the circuit module measures a
magnitude of a parameter of the circuit and generates a count value representative
of said magnitude.
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14. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured, such that they operate in a non-conventional manner.

15. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured so as to allow a user to set customized ranges of values to be set as parameters of
end-of-line modules (i.e., parameters of a circuit). Generic processors cannot provide this
functionality. As stated in the specification, “[t]he various threshold values . . . are preferably
configured as variables which may be set as parameters of the EOL module. In this way, the
EOL module may be configured to operate with a wide range of field resistors, thus enabling the
EOL module to be retrofitted to a wide range of field circuits wherein the series and field
resistors . . . already exist and cannot readily be changed.” ‘744 Patent, 7:12-19; see also /d.,
7:30-49 and 7:51-63.

Such . . . systems using EOL modules according to the present invention may be

readily retrofitted to existing system, while utilizing the existing wiring regardless

of existing resistance values. A system built in this way, either as an original

installation or as a retrofit, provides a flexible and relatively inexpensive option

which eliminates dependency on proprietary hardware and software.

Id., 8:37-43. Thus, the ‘744 Patent specification clarifies that the claimed components,
performing the claimed functionality, are not conventional or generic.

16. Collectively, the claimed embodiments in the ‘744 Patent provide new solutions
to problems of traditional security monitoring systems. These solutions are enabled by non-
generic components functioning in a non-conventional manner.

17. The ‘744 Patent solves a problem with the art that is rooted in computer
technology. The ‘744 Patent does not merely recite the performance of some business practice

known from the pre-Internet world along with the requirement to perform it on the Internet.

18. Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
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one or more claims, including at least Claim 1 of the 744 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,
and/or components for such systems, which are covered by one or more claims of the ‘744
Patent. Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of
accused devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed
and continues to infringe the 744 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

19.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
one or more claims, including at least Claim 1, of the ‘744 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,
and/or components for such systems covered by one or more claims of the ‘744 Patent.
Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of accused
devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed and
continues to infringe the ‘744 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

20. Regarding Claim 1, Defendant makes, uses, sells and/or offers for sale an
apparatus for monitoring a circuit and for coupling to a central system. For example, Defendant
sells, offers to sell, and/or uses a range of industrial sensors (such as Proximity sensors,
Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) and products
(such as Signal Conditioners, Level Measurement, Purge + Pressurization Systems, Intrinsically
Safe Mobile Devices, Industrial Monitors+tHMI Solutions) for monitoring a circuit. Defendant’s
industrial sensors couple to a central system (such as process control and indication equipment,
Pulse Counter Units and Displays) which controls the processes for the connected sensors.
Infringing products and certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots below

and/or in those provided in connection with other allegations herein.
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Industrial Sensors
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Displays and Signal Processing
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Process control and indication
equipment DAB-IU-2K-C
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3 Description

Digital pane!l meter for displaying measured values, as well as monitoring limit values in industrial
applications.

= B-digit 14-segment LED display, 14 mm, for displaying measured values and dialogs
« Running text can be switched on as Help Text

« Language for the Help Text selectable as English or German

= Signal input for 0-10V,2-10V, #10V, 020 mA and 4 - 20 mA

« Sampling rate 10 readings per second

« Digital filter (15t order) for smoothing display fluctuations with unstable input signals
« Customised linearisation

= MIN/MAX memory function

« Totaliser function

= 2 Relay outpuls (changeover contacts) for limit menitoring

« Start delay for relay outputs after Power ON

« Versions for supply voltage 10 ... 30 V DC and 100 ... 240 V AC + 10%

« Auxiliary power supply 15V DC / 25 mA

« Additional aux. power oulput 24 V / 30 mA with AC supply

« Programmable via the front keys

« Multifunction key and two multifunction inputs, function programmable

Source; https:// files pepperl-fuchs com'webcat/navi'productInfor docttdoct 28563 enspdfTv=2016041 1095908 5

21. The infringing products provide a circuit module to determine a status of the

circuit. For example, Defendant’s process control and indication equipment integrates with a
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range of industrial sensors (such as Proximity sensors, Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors,
Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) for determining a status (such as resistance, voltage,
current, conductivity) of the circuit associated with the sensor. Certain aspects of this element
are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

22.  The infringing products provide a network communications module coupled to
the circuit module to communicate a signal indicative of the assigned status to the central system
via a network, said network communications module limiting all status communications with the
central system to only the signal indicative of the assigned status. For example, Defendant’s
process control and indication equipment comprises a network communications module coupled
to at least one of the sensors (such as Proximity sensors, Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic
sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) to communicate a signal indicative of the assigned
status (such as high-speed movements, positioning and/or medium level) to the central system
via plug-in screw terminals (“network™). The communication module is dedicated to
communicate with the central system to indicate the status of the signal from one of the sensor.
Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or those provided in

connection with other allegations herein.
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only for AC verskon

W
] GND 3 Version AC:
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Source: httpz:/ files pepperl-fuchz com’webcat' navi‘productinfo’'doct tdoct 28363 engpdfx=2016041 1093008, page 6
23. The infringing products provide a display to present an indication of a status of

the circuit based on the signal indicative of the assigned status, wherein the circuit module
measures a magnitude of a parameter of the circuit and generates a count value representative of
said magnitude. For example, Defendant’s process control and indication equipment comprises
an integrated display to present an indication (such as measured values and dialogs) for at least
one of the sensors based on the assigned status (such as high-speed movements, positioning
and/or medium level). The sensor measures a magnitude of a parameter (such as resistance,
voltage and/or current) and generates a count value representative of at least one of the
magnitude. Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or those

provided in connection with other allegations herein.
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4 Display/Operating elements
(1) Display

- 14 segment display. 6-digil, red

- Height of figuras 14 mm

(2) Status display, 2 LED annunciators , red
- Swilching status of Alarm 1 and Alarm 2 {2} {1:| {4}
- Indication Function Group or Function ] ! !
(3) MP-Key and Programming Keys

@ | Vutitunciion key (MP-Key)
1

— - Return from Function Group 2 » . . - - .
s - Return from Function

3 - Salect previous Function Group
=1 | - Select previous Funclion - - ﬁ -
g - Decremeni parameter valug
) - Select next Function Group |
o+ - Select next Function (3)
) - Increment parameter value
) _ - Enter a Function Group
- - Enter a Function
~ | - Accept the new setling

{4) Space for unit overlay

To enter the Programming Menu = . = i i

To display Device Type and Software Version = . BB ...
To restore factory default settings a— , - -

Source: https:// files pepperl-fuchs com'webcat mavi‘pro ductinfo/'doct tdoct2856a_ens.pdf=201604110095008 page

24. Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is
enjoined by this court.

25. Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and
monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendant is enjoined
and restrained by this Court.

26. Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287.

COUNTII
(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 8.816.869)

27.  Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 26 herein by reference.
28.  This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in

particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.
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29.  Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘869 Patent with sole rights to
enforce the ‘869 Patent and sue infringers.

30. A copy of the ‘869 Patent, titled “Circuit Monitoring Device,” is attached hereto
as Exhibit B.

31.  The ‘869 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance
with Title 35 of the United States Code.

32.  The claims of the ‘869 recite subject matter that is similar to that recited in the
claims of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I). The specification of
the ‘869 Patent discloses problems of prior systems and non-generic solutions in a manner
similar to the specification of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I).

33. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured, such that they operate in a non-conventional manner.

34. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured so as to allow a user to set customized ranges of values to be set as parameters of
end-of-line modules (i.e., parameters of a circuit). Generic processors cannot provide this
functionality. The ‘869 Patent specification clarifies that the claimed components, performing
the claimed functionality, are not conventional or generic.

35.  Collectively, the claimed embodiments in the ‘869 Patent provide new solutions
to problems of traditional security monitoring systems. These solutions are enabled by non-
generic components functioning in a non-conventional manner.

36.  The ‘869 Patent solves a problem with the art that is rooted in computer
technology. The ‘869 Patent does not merely recite the performance of some business practice

known from the pre-Internet world along with the requirement to perform it on the Internet.
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37.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
one or more claims, including at least Claim 1, of the ‘869 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,
and/or components for such systems covered by one or more claims of the ‘869 Patent.
Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of accused
devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed and
continues to infringe the ‘869 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

38.  Regarding Claim 1, Defendant makes, uses, sells and/or offers for sale a device
for monitoring the status of a circuit based on a measurable parameter of the circuit. For
example, Defendant provides range of industrial sensors (such as Proximity sensors,
Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) and products
(such as Signal Conditioners, Level Measurement, Purge + Pressurization Systems,
Intrinsically Safe Mobile Devices, Industrial MonitorstHMI Solutions) for monitoring a
parameter of the circuit (such as piezoelectric vibration, conductivity, capacitance, and voltage,
current). Defendant’s industrial sensors couple to a central system (such as process control and
indication equipment, Pulse Counter Units and Displays) which controls the processes for the
connected sensors. Infringing products and certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the

screenshots below and/or in those provided in connection with other allegations herein.
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Industrial Sensors
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Displays and Signal Processing
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1. Measuring task

Limit value detection

Limit value swilches signal whathar the medium being
mionitored has reached, nsen above, or fallen balow, a set
level (VDU'VDE Directive 3519) based on its instaliation

height

Examples: overfiow/dry-run profection,
minimum-rmaximem control
overspill protection

Continuous level measurement

Measuring sensors detect the curent fill lavel, This iz done by
determining the distance from the surlace of the madium o
the preset reference level. Continuous level measurement

aliows usage evaluation, kess control, and above all, precise Z
process controd (VDUVWDE Directive 3519),

by s
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Vibration

Capacitive

Vibration level measurement is a proven method for recording
the limit level in liquids and bulk goods. A tuning-fork sensor
oscillates by means of a piezoelectric charge. When the sensor
comes into contact with the product as it rises, the frequency
of the oscillations changes. The evaluation electronics then convert
this change into a switching signal.

Capacitive limit switches provide a simple method for limit level
detection in light bulk goods. A rod or cable probe forms a
capacitor together with the tank wall. As the quantity of product
changes, so too does the capacity of the capacitor. A full tank
has a high capacity; a tank that is emptying has a lower capacity
that corresponds with the rate at which it is emptying. This

change in capacity is measured and used to calculate the fill level.

Source: https://files pepperl-fuchs comweb cat navi‘productinfo’'doct tdoct081de_ens pdfv=20-AUG-12 page 7

39. The infringing products provide a measurement means to measure the parameter
of the circuit. For example, Defendant provides process control and indication equipment
which integrates with at least one of the industrial sensors (such as Proximity sensors,
Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) and is
configured to measure the electrical parameter (such as voltage, inductance, current and/or

resistance) of the circuit. Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots below

and/or those provided in connection with other allegations herein.
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Displays and Signal Processing

of digital and analog signals

| counters process displays, signal converters vd switch amplifiers ha

Source: https:/‘wow. pepper-fuchs comuiza‘en/clazsid 243 htm
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3 Description
Digital panel meter for displaying measured values, as well as monitoring limit values in industrial
applications.

« 6-digit 14-segment LED display, 14 mm, for displaying measured values and dialogs
= Running text can be switched on as Help Text

= Language for the Help Text selectable as English or German

= Signalinputfor 0-10V, 2-10V, 10V, 0-20 mA and 4 — 20 mA

= Sampling rate 10 readings per second

= Digital filter (1st order) for smoothing display fluctuations with unstable input signals
« Customised lincarisation

= MIN/MAX memory function

« Tolaliser function

« 2 Relay outputs (changeover contacts) for limit monitoring

= Start delay for relay outputs after Power ON

« Versions for supply voltage 10 ... 30 V DC and 100 ... 240 V AC + 10%

« Auxiliary power supply 15V DC / 25 mA

« Additional aux. power output 24 V [ 30 mA with AC supply

= Programmable via the front keys

= Multifunction key and two multifunction inputs, function programmable

Source: hitps:// files pepperl-fuchs com'webcat navi‘productinfo’ docttdoct 28362 eng pdf?=2016041 1095008 e 3

5 Block diagram

only for AC version

| «£) ouT
| GND 3 (9 Version AC:
|24 VDC/30 mA 1“;?,‘;5“" VAL
e i, or
Version DC:
I +10 ... 30 VDC
MP-INP 2 (7)
ouT1
enD2 (8) Limit 1
MPNP 1 (5) pc
ouT 2
AND 1 “ Limit 2
~SHIN ma
VOLT D
15vDC25 mA (1)
«£)out

Source: https://files pepperl-fuchs. com‘webcat navi‘productinfo’'doct tdoct2836a_eng pdf™=201604110935908 page 6
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Conductive
The conductivity of the liquid medium A switching signal is produced from the sudden increase in
may vary within a wide range. Once the current consumption.
'; I:] liquid reaches the fill limit determined Combustible liquids such as fuels, oils and solvents are non-

" from the installation height of the conductive and cannot be measurad by this measuring
electrode, the medium closes the DC- principle. Acids, lyes and solutions containing water are
free alternating current circuit between conductive and are detected very well.
the two electrodes (or between the Aggressive liquids can be detected without problems using
container wall and an electrode). probes made from highly-resistant materials.

Source: https:// files pepperl-fuchs com'webeat navi/'pro ductinfo/ docttdoct0700b_eng pdffv=20-ATUG-18 page 11

Two sloctrodes are installed above tha surface of a
conductive hauid which is to be monitored. if the liquid level

rises 10 tha point where both electrodas are in contact with |:]
the kquid, the current circust of a connected relay is
completed via the two electrodes and the liquid, causing a
switching signal to be activated.

The mindmum conductivity of the liquid must be

10 pSicm, Thase conditions: are fulfiled by practically all
conductive liquids, such as water, acds and lyes. wilh the
mxcaption of pure sohants,

If several switching paints are needed, the cormaspanding
muitipta electrodes should be used,

In order 1o avoid aelectrical effects in the ligusd, a DC-Iree
alternating cument is used for measuring. This is genarated
by an electrode relay or a converor.
Interfacial level detection can be easidly and economically
realssed with this measuring method. Particularty with oil
and petrol separators, the limit value between the water
and the non-conductive kquid is easy io detect.

Conductive limit swilch LKL-P1

Source: https://files pepperl-fuchs com'webcat navi‘productinfo doct tdoct0700b_engs pdffv=20-ATG-18 page 107
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Limit value detection
Float switch

Flaat swilchiod Brd usad Tor gampls bmit

wakue delicion in liquids. D o the
highor denaity of the kqud, ine Baal
wanilch fioats on the kud suracs

Tha Baat gwibch & secunsd Iy means of B8 cabls Aasienss ot
& Jirved suitadsle lor the ghven applicabon. Tho swilching

process i inggered by e recking movomeants of e sansor.
Initiators and micro swilchis e used A8 Swiching siomonts.

The conduictnaty of the liquid modism
mary wary within a wide range. Once the
Equid rpachos the fill limé detormingd
trom tho installaticn hoight of the
oloctrode, the madium closes tha DC-
H free altemating cument circuit betweon
ha two electrodes (or between the
cortaingr wall and an akectrode)

Vibration
Tha piecoeectrically acfvaled vibrasion Tha Bunction s indoependent of luchuaiions in the physical
of p vibrating fork ks dampod whon he propoeries of the madium
Il comas o contact with tha

(4 ) i

Lising thes change, an slectron: syshem
dplgrmanes tha swiichng signal.

Conductive

i swiiching signal ks produced inom 1he swuddon ncromse in
curmanl eonsumplion

Combustible liquids such as fuals, ols and soivents am non-
concuctive and cannot be meaasuned by this meesuring
princigle. Acids, kes and solufions conkaining wasor an
conductive and ane detected very well

Aggreschve liqueds can bo dobtocled withous problomes using
probes macde from highby-resistant materials,

Capacitive
An insulated malal probe mounted ina
— Frasind coMviainer IoMms & Capachod
5 T | together with the mekal wall whose
capacitance continually INcroases as
I the mediurm level increases

Hance, 1o CAPAGYG MESUreMenis & modum with &
constant padrmillity is roquined

Thea s B FobUST CORRIMETION (12 i oF MOpE 380
abow bovel measurement of iguids, granular solds,
conchictve and non-conductive moda

Magnet-operated immersion probe

WA - ] [PTTS PR DS BN
umed in chean bousds. such 83 8. g

sahoants of cils. The tiaal, guided by &
pribe fub, Boats o6 T buid surlacs.

By Pans of ils magnee fald, 17e g MAgNe! Bult o ha
Bl ACOvases Mo need Coniacls inalnfied @ (hi Quacke peDe
Thase are switchad whon tha fioal is located in tha
Bpproprints postion.

Thr red conBCSs an desigred &8 normally cosed, nomally
open of change-ovir contsc! switchos. The mansunement i

Page 22 of 44

. indepondent of the oclecincal propartios of Me kquid, as wel
i as i prasswte, IsMmperabunt and denaity

erl-fuchs.comwebcatnavi‘productInfo/doct'tdoct0700b_engpdffv=20-ATTG-12 page 11

40. The infringing products a comparison means to compare the measured
parameter to a plurality of threshold values and to assign a status based on a result of the
comparison. For example, Defendant’s process control and indication equipment comprises a
comparison means that integrates with at least one of the sensor (such as Proximity sensors,
Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) via a network
(such as plug-in screw terminals) and compares the measured electrical parameter (such as
voltage, current, inductance and/or resistance) with a plurality of threshold values (such as

normal value condition and/or alarm value condition) stored in memory and assigns the
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comparison result a status (such as measured values and/or dialogs). Further, Defendant’s
Level Measurement also monitors the medium level by comparing the measured parameter
against plurality of set levels (“threshold values”) and assigning the comparison result a status.
The status signal is used to represent if the level has reached, risen above, or fallen below a set
level. Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or those

provided in connection with other allegations herein.

4 Display/Operating elements
(1) Display

- 14 segment display, 6-digit, red

- Height of figures 14 mm

(2) Status display. 2 LED annunciators , red
- Switching status of Alarm 1 and Alarm 2 {2] {1} {4]
- Indication Function Group or Function ] | !
(3) MP-Key and Programming Keys

@ | Mutunction key (MP-Key) ; g 5 Q 5 E E
| - Return from Function Group 2 . > s - . -
-~ | - Return from Function
- Select previous Funclion Group

- - =
| - Decrement parameter value
- Select next Function Group I
+ - Select next Function (3)
- - Increment parameter value
- Enter a Function Group
%9=i |- Entera Function
' - Accept the new selting

(4) Space for unit overlay

To enter the Programming Menu i _ 4 + T

To display Device Type and Software Version == . - i faga: ——
To restore factory default settings -‘— . (- P

Source: https://files pepperl-fuchs com'webcat mavi‘productinfo’'docttdoct 28 36a_enz pdfT=20160411093008 page 5
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5 Block diagram

only for AC version

| «£)out
f GND 3 Version AC:
! 100 ... 240 VAC
i i or
3 Version DC:
I +10 ... 30 VDC
MP-INP 2
ouT1
GND 2 Limit 1
MP-INP 1 HC
ouT 2
Limit 2
GND 1 A
~#IN  mA
VOLT D
15VDC/25 mA
+£)our

pdfT=20160411093908 page &

3

Source: httpz://files pepperl-fuchs com'webcat navi‘productinfo/ docttdoct 28 36a
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ACTUAL meam s 62497 ...
- e o - =+
HINT AU et 2038} .,
= + af — ==
AT HU s 9560]| s

1 sec '

F

s ‘"- Total value

Device type for 2 sec.

TOT ALl w3 (04 15.0M o e

o = Limitvalue 1

Software version for 2 sec

KEY FUNKTION
see 9.4

Set limit value1

I

= @lﬂ

=00 (001

Set limit value 2,

i Eanc

002000

= Decrement value
= Increment value
=5 Select digit

Source: https:/files pepper-fuchs. com'webcat ‘'navi‘pro ductinfo’'doct tdoct2856a_enspdf=20160411003908 page 7
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Limit value detection

Limit value swilches signal whether the medium being
monitored has reached, risen above, or fallen below, a set
level (VDIVDE Directive 3519) based on its installation
height.
Examples: overlow/dry-run protection,
minimum-maximum control
overspill protection

Source: https://files pepperl-fuchs com’webeat'navi'productinfo’'docttdoct0700b_engpdffv=20-ATUG-18 page 10

Function and system design

Measuring principle An alternating voltage exists between the rod probes in an emptly tank.
As spon as the conductive liquid in the tank creates a connection between the ground probe rod and, for
example, the maximum probe rod, a measurable current fiows and the LKL-P* switches. With leved limit
detection, the LKL-P* swilches back as soon as the liquid clears the maximum probe. With two-peint control,
the LKL-P* does not swilch back until the max and min probe is cleared.
Using aftemating voliage prevents comosion of the probe rods and electrolytic destruction of the product. The
material used for the tank walls is not imporiant for measurement because the system is designed as a
closad potential-free circult between the probe rods and the electronics. There is absolutely no danger il the
probe rods are touched during operation.

Equepment architecturs probe with integrated electronic insen (compact instrumant version)
probe without integrated electronic insen (separate instrument varsion) for one or lwo point detection
respectively, see saction measuring system

Source: https-//files pepperl-fuchs comwebcat navi'productInfo’docttdoct0700b _enz pdffv=20-AUG-18 page 109
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Electrical connection

OQulputES(FEWS2) e e e ——
compact instrument version
Transistor circuit for load:

I
[
I
The load connected (o terminal 3 is |
switched by a transisior, contactless [
and tharefore without bouncing. |

]

|

In narmal switching status, lerminal

2
3 has a positive signal. The e oy
fransistor is blocked in the event of a
leved alarm or a power failure, E

Protection against voltage peaks:

When connecting a device with high
inductance, always connect a L+ L=
voltage Hmiter. R S

supply

F: fing-wirg fuse 500 mA, semi-lime lag
M ground connection 1o proboctve aarth

Cutput signal:
Prefarred in conjunction with Fail-sale mode Switch point Output gignal rd
programmable logic controllers
(PLC). Positive signal at the switch o o
output of the electronics (PNP).The s q L+ I
output is blocked after the leval kmit j ——= 3
is reached. Max, U
If the proba is covered and the red 4 ¥ v
LED flashes continuously, the next q <1001 _:ti}:_
maore sensitive measuring range has | ———= 3 !
to be set. This ensures a safe switch
point even il the conductivity of the
medium varas slightly, | q L+ i, 9
|
MIN \-/L it 100 A : D.

*1 = load cument {sonnicted), *2 residual curmont {disconnecled); *3 LED not i, *4 LED &
Source: https://files peppetl-fuchs com'webecatmavi‘productInfo’'doct/tdoctd700b_eng pdf?v=20-ATG-18 page 113

41.  The infringing products provide a transmission means to communicate the
status over a network and to limit the communicated status to only digital bits indicating the
status and being sufficient to describe the status. For example, Defendant’s process control
and indication equipment provides a communication module (“transmission means”) to
transmit the status signal over a network to an integrated display creating a visual indication
(“digital bits”) of the status signal or the sensor data. Further, the Level Measurement also
provides a communication module (“transmission means”) to transmit the status signal via a

network (such as plug-in screw terminals) to a display device creating a visual indication
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Certain aspects of this element are

illustrated in the screenshots below and/or those provided in connection with other allegations

herein.

Model number
DAS5-IU-2K-C
DAS-IU-2K-V

Features

Source: httpz://files pe

2 popustabie lirsl valies

2 reday outputs
Oparation v kiypad
Programmabloe charactorisiics
Rasetling the ouputs, aulomats,
manual o with exiemal signal
Connecton via plug-in scrow
torminals

Auxxillary power oulpul for Sensom
(Oniby DAS-ILL2KA)

Protection degrea IFES in
mecordance with DIN EM 80529 {ironl
ondy)

Shaock MSES1ENOD in BCoondanoo with
DM EN B0068-2-27

Vibration resistance in accoidance
with DIN EM 80088-2-6

System hum supphission

Stenafe WA R

Mounting
Hotes

oo

10* wionage cyches or 18 yean, EEPACK
AL T

(o= ]

T-segmand LED daglay, red

]

gt Rt 142 mm

Syt Papight 14.2 mm

with “Tegh™-ievel &l lsmansl WEY”

T 00

Eopetrly juintabin

14 B

vl chamciérishe cures with up o 24 value pass
raruaiy o guismal

LL-P L e B0 260V AC
W VA

> 1 M1 veltnge P iemen

< 50 L1 ot Curmont moamreent

0. 10WE _. 10VDE, -0, 10V DC
O 20 mAs _ 30 mA

OV ACIOVDC, IA FadS0VACTOOV DO JA
Changeores oomisct changecral contacl
o ¥ DC, 00 mA

-1 S0CC .. 32K
=25 70O (M8 . MIK)
<80 % |non-condensng)

B AN 11 Qi CONPSCION Wil phugn BCrev leeminals
£t ]

5 mm i 43 mm x50
mcinbing kemme wih laich laitens

Tha DAS-IU-2K-... parmits & simpdo visusl inspection by openaling and mainlenance
permsonnel. it comants the analogue Sensor output signal inlo & readable form for

s purpese. Deponding on the sk or safting, 4 mA ... 20 mA or 0 %
values can be displayed.

Scope ol delivery:

100 %

* Process control unil DAS-IL-2K-*

= Scrow lerminals

1 AM 5.08 B-pole terminal for power supply and outpuls
1 AM 281 11-pole terminal for measuring and control inputs:

= Clamp clip
= Saal

= 1 sheat of adbasive symbols

erl-fuchs com'webcat 'navi’

roductinfo’'docttdoct0700b eng pdffv=20-ATNG-18 page 208
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max. 19
95 155 !
4567 i U |
= E‘ 1 [
OO0 0O I

I}

Control pana cutout 4

PRI S LS EPIIS LI LIS IS IS IS B7.1 B.5

BB R R
0 CRCRR TR )
454086

o L
g92+:08

Source: https:/‘files pepperl-fuchs comwebecat navi‘productinfo/doct/tdoct0T00b_eng pdf?v=20-ATG-18 page 200

42. The infringing products provide a transmission means wherein the status
communication is transmitted over the network to an output means configured to present an
indication of the assigned status. For example, Defendant’s process control and indication
equipment has an integrated display to present an indication (such as measured values and
dialogs) for at least one of the sensors based on the assigned status (such as high-speed
movements, positioning and/or medium level). Further, Defendant provides display devices
(“output means”’) which when interfaced with the Level Measurement provide an indication of
the assigned status signal. Also, the Level Measurement is equipped with LEDs (“output
means”) to indicate the level (“status”) of the medium. Certain aspects of this element are
illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

43. Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is
enjoined by this court.

44. Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and
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monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendant is enjoined
and restrained by this Court.
45.  Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287.

COUNT 1
(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 8,912,893)

46. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 45 herein by reference.

47. This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in
particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.

48. Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘893 Patent with sole rights to
enforce the ‘893 Patent and sue infringers.

49. A copy of the ‘893 Patent, titled “Circuit Monitoring Device,” is attached hereto
as Exhibit C.

50. The ‘893 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance
with Title 35 of the United States Code.

51. The claims of the ‘893 recite subject matter that is similar to that recited in the
claims of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I). The specification of
the ‘893 Patent discloses problems of prior systems and non-generic solutions in a manner
similar to the specification of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I).

52. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured, such that they operate in a non-conventional manner.

53. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured so as to allow a user to set customized ranges of values to be set as parameters of
end-of-line modules (i.e., parameters of a circuit). Generic processors cannot provide this

functionality. The ‘869 Patent specification clarifies that the claimed components, performing
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the claimed functionality, are not conventional or generic.

54. Collectively, the claimed embodiments in the ‘893 Patent provide new solutions
to problems of traditional security monitoring systems. These solutions are enabled by non-
generic components functioning in a non-conventional manner.

55.  The ‘893 Patent solves a problem with the art that is rooted in computer
technology. The 893 Patent does not merely recite the performance of some business practice
known from the pre-Internet world along with the requirement to perform it on the Internet.

56.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
one or more claims, including at least Claim 1, of the ‘893 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,
and/or components for such systems covered by one or more claims of the ‘893 Patent.
Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of accused
devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed and
continues to infringe the ‘893 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

57. Regarding Claim 1, Defendant makes, uses, sells and/or offers for sale a circuit
monitoring device. For example, Defendant provides process control and indication equipment
to monitor circuit parameters (such as resistance, voltage, current, and conductivity) associated
with at least one of the sensors (such as Proximity sensors, Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic
sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors). Infringing products and certain aspects of this
element are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or in those provided in connection with

other allegations herein.
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Product

DAG-IU-2K-C

Source: httpe://'www pepperl-fuchs comea‘en‘classid 2435 him

Process control and indication
equipment DAB-IU-2K-C

Source:https:(wwww pepper-fuchs comusa‘en'classid 243 htmMview=productdetailsfrprodid=553T6=documents
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3 Description

Digital panel meter for displaying measured values, as well as monitoring limit values in industrial
applications.

« B-digit 14-segment LED display, 14 mm, for displaying measured values and dialogs
+ Running text can be swilched on as Help Text

» Language for lhe Help Text selectable as English or German

« Signal inputfor 0-10V,2-10V, #10V, 0 - 20 mA and 4 - 20 mA

» Sampling rate 10 readings per second

« Digital filter (1st order) for smoothing display fluctuations with unstable input signals
« Customised linearisation

« MIN/MAX memory function

= Totaliser function

« 2 Relay outpuls (changeover contacts) for limil monitoring

= Start delay for relay oulputs after Power ON

= Versions for supply voltage 10 ... 30 V DC and 100 ... 240V AC £ 10%

« Auxiliary power supply 15V DC / 25 mA

« Additional aux. power output 24 V / 30 mA with AC supply

= Programmable via the front keys

« Multifunction key and two multifunction inputs, function programmable

Source: https://files pepper-fuchs com'webcat/navi productinfo’ docttdoct2856a_eng pdf?=2016041 1095908 page 3

58.  The infringing products provide one or more processors, each having a memory
and an input electrically coupled to a circuit which is configured to receive a measured
electrical parameter of the circuit, and modules comprising software to configure the one or
more processors. For example, Defendant provides process control and indication equipment
which comprises of one or more processors, each having a memory. Further, the equipment is
electrically coupled to at least one of the industrial sensors (such as Proximity sensors,
Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) and is
configured to receive the measured electrical parameter (such as voltage, inductance, current
and/or resistance) of the circuit. The equipment also comprises software to configure/program
one or more processors. Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots below

and/or those provided in connection with other allegations herein.
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Displays and Signal Processing

digital and analog signals

counters. process displays, signal converters, and switch amplitiers ihal ame a

E55 LISPayS

g —

Source: https:/www pepperl-fuchs commsa’en’clazsd 243 him
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4 Display/Operating elements
(1) Display
- 14 segment display, 6-digit, red
- Height of figures 14 mm
(2) Status display, 2 LED annunciators , red
- Switching status of Alarm 1 and Alarm 2 (2) (1) (4)
- Indication Function Group or Function |
(3) MP-Key and Programming Keys

@ | - vutiunciion key (MP-Key) ¥ E Q g g 5 g
- Return from Function Group 2 ® ® ° ° ® ®

:"‘_"ﬂ - Return from Function ——
- Select previous Function Group

) [ormeer - ==

v - Decrement parameter value

|- Select next Function Group 1

4 |- Select next Function (3)

- Incremenl parameter value

_ - Enter a Function Group
{S= |- Enter a Function
S |- Accept the new setting

{4) Space for unit overlay

To enter the Programming Menu = N e

To display Device Type and Software Version = .= .= s
o testore factory defeuit setings N IS

Source: https://files pepped-fuchs com‘webecat' mavi‘productinfo/'docttdoct 28362 _enspdfh=2016041 1095008 page 3
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5 Block diagram

only for AC version

| «—£)out :
| GND 3 (9 . Version AC:
i i 100 ... 240 VAC
124VDC30mA (B - £10 %
|2 e e e e R or
Version DC;
I +10 ... 30VDC
MP-INP 2 (7)
ouT1
GND2 (B) Limit 1
MP-INP 1 (5) pc
o
mit
GND 1 A
%N ma (3
VOLT D
15vDC25 mA (1)

Source: https://files pepperl-fichs. com'web cat navi‘productinfo’' doct tdoct 28 3 6a pdfv=20160411095908 g
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OPERATING MODE

or
1 & B Current meassured value

L]
‘ U
=

T b I i |

HC“I U HL —ll’l!:li;‘l.}]—'l- E,L f [} @-; 35;;1 -~ PJ_Q

- 1rm 4+ an = Min. value T P Fl] ﬂ E'!r
f'fINIHU,J'—[m:uf_rl—n“ 2ei6 >3s N

= |- y —=JEFAUL

£ . =, = Max. value
|er‘::iP1UﬁTIMEDUT':j S:SEE =55
- 1 88 ﬁ {;! I-ﬁ
e 3 * Davice t fqr 2 sec
L [ - Gr.; S, smmﬂr»: i:ammn for 2 sec

TOTAHL Frweom o 18471757 ey
= | KEY FUNKTION
see 9.4
or

e = Limit value 1 Set limit value 1, |

HLARM :'—@mﬁ—-ﬂg IQQQH%;HEQ ogg

- + —

C—- i or -
1 @ = Limitvalue 2 G Set limit value 2,
ALARM P meam = 0200 E -n—i—_m;g_qu_ﬂ—'iigﬂ g206p0
- LT - Ty
=] I 5 =0 Decrement value
i : % Increment value
® == Select digit
Source: https:// filez pepperl-fuchs com'webcat/navi‘productinfo’docttdoct2836a engpdf?=2016041 1095908 page 7

59. The infringing products a comparison module configured to compare a digital
value, which corresponds to a magnitude of the measured electrical parameter, to a plurality of
threshold values stored in the memory, wherein the plurality of threshold values define a
respective plurality of ranges of digital values, each range corresponding to one of a plurality
of conditions of the circuit including a normal condition and at least one alarm condition. For
example, Defendant’s process control and indication equipment comprises a comparison
module that integrates with at least one of the sensor (such as Proximity sensors, Photoelectric

sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and Acceleration Sensors) via a network (such as plug-
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in screw terminals) and compares the digital value (a voltage and/or current indicative count
value i.e. low or high) corresponding to a magnitude of measured electrical parameter (such as
voltage, current, inductance and/or resistance) with a plurality of threshold values (such as
normal value condition and/or alarm value condition) stored in the memory. Certain aspects of
this element are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or those provided in connection with

other allegations herein.

9.6  Limit Value (Alarm) Monitoring MIOUT 2 | Select Output triggering
AL ARH || Menu Alarm Output 1 INCR ;”;mﬂdemmﬂﬂ measuring
ALOUT || select operating mode D E [ P | With decrementing measuring
OFF | oFF signai
I HU Tﬂ Automaltic operation BAN ] | Band limitation
L H TEH Mamory laich operation F HGU T 2 | Select Alarm status
- ot with band mitation [~ = | 'with alarm: output active
AL | [ | | Select source value for Alarm e ; ;
] ctput 1 T_ _ _ | with alarm: output inactive
AL TUAL |Cument measured value ONH T 5 | Select on-hysteresis
TOTAL | Totaiser a6ge ',;,"’m rsa‘;g;and "
MHIourT | Select Output Iriggering OF H v 57 | Select oft-hysteresis
I_H_L'E Withincrementing measuring | | &~ - only with auto operation
signal _ . 0008 | inputrange
ﬂ E L' F | With decrementing measuring B 0 ... +9993 and DP
|
BAN D x:: limitation OnDL rg SRR O Ry
ﬂ_ Input range 0.0 ... 99.9 [sec]
Frluu{l Salect Alarm status UF_EL .r,E 5&|Edﬂ“-dﬂ']a)'
i _.r _ | With alarm: output active . —~ | - only with auto operation
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erl-fuchs com'webcat'navi productinfor docttdoct 28362 e

Source: https:// files pe

pdflv=201604110035908 page 16

60.  The infringing products provide a comparison module to assign a status based

on the digital value being within a particular range defined by one or more of the plurality of
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threshold values. For example, Defendant’s process control and indication equipment assigns
a status (such as measured values and/or dialogs) based on the digital value (such as voltage
and/or current) which is within a particular range defined by one or more of the plurality of
threshold values (such as normal value condition and/or alarm value condition). Certain
aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other
allegations herein.

61.  The infringing products provide a communication module configured to
generate a status signal including at least the assigned status. For example, Defendant’s
process control and indication equipment integrates with at least one of the sensor (such as
Proximity sensors, Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and Acceleration
Sensors) via a communication network (such as plug-in screw terminals) which is configured
to generate a status signal (such as measured values and/or dialogs). The status signal further
represents the measured electrical parameter associated with the sensor. Certain aspects of this
element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

62. The infringing products provide a transmitter configured to transmit the status
signal to a centralized system over a network for output, by the centralized system, of the
status. For example, the process control and indication equipment (“centralized system”)
comprises a communication module to transmit the status signal from at least one of the
sensors (such as Proximity sensors, Photoelectric sensors, Ultrasonic sensors, Inclination and
Acceleration Sensors) via a network (such as plug-in screw terminals). Certain aspects of this
element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

63.  Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is

enjoined by this court.
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64.  Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and
monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendant is enjoined
and restrained by this Court.

65.  Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff asks the Court to:

(a) Enter judgment for Plaintiff on this Complaint on all causes of action asserted
herein;

(b) Award Plaintiff past and future damages, costs, and expenses resulting from
Defendant’s infringement in accordance with 35 U.S.C. § 284;

(c) Award Plaintiff pre-judgment and post-judgment interest and costs; and

(d) Award Plaintiff such further relief to which the Court finds Plaintiff entitled
under law or equity.

Dated: July 19, 2019 Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Jay Johnson

JAY JOHNSON

State Bar No. 24067322

D. BRADLEY KIZZIA
State Bar No. 11547550
KIZZIA JOHNSON, PLLC
1910 Pacific Ave., Suite 13000
Dallas, Texas 75201
(214)451-0164

Fax: (214) 451-0165
jay@kjpllc.com
bkizzia@kjpllc.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on July 19, 2019, I electronically filed the above documents with

PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AGAINST DEFENDANT PEPPRL + FUCHS, INC. PAGE |40



Case 4:19-cv-01515 Document 11 Filed on 07/19/19 in TXSD Page 41 of 44

the Clerk of Court using CM/ECF which will send electronic notification of such filings to all
registered counsel.

/s/ Jay Johnson
JAY JOHNSON
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EXHIBIT A
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EXHIBIT B
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EXHIBIT C
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